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Annual Report of Holding Companies-FR Y-6 

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844(c)(1)(A)}; sections 8(a) 
and 13(a) of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1 ), 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve ·Act {12 u.s.c_ §§ 248{a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec­
tions 113,165,312,618, and 809 ofthe Dodd-FrankAct(12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468{b)(1)). Return to the 
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
copies specified. 

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the 
authorized individual who must sign the report. 
1,W.T. Weber, Jr. 

Name of lhe Holding Company Director and Official 

Chairman & President 
Tille of 1he Holding Company Director and Ol'ficial 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) tor this report date has been pre­
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal 
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

Vv'ith respect to information regarding individuals contained in this 
report, the Reporter certifies Iha/ II has the aulhority to provide this 
Information lo ./he F9deral Reserve. The Reporter also certifies 
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or 
object to public release of information regarding Iha/ individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, In the absence of a request for 
confiden/lal treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information, " 12 C.F.R. Part 261, 
that the Reporter fJ.aJi. ndiv/dual consent to public release of all 
details in th~P.-<C J iing that individual. 

Date of Signature 

For holding companies aQJ. registered with the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders: 
@ is included wilh the FR Y-6 report 
D will be sent under separate cover 
0 is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only 

RSSD ID \l339~9 
C.I. 

This report form ls to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa­
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under u_s. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
nization under Section 211 .23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211 ,23). (See page one or the general instructions for more detail 
of Who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required lo respond 
lo, an information collection unless it displays a currently valld 
0MB control number 

Date of Report (top.tier holding company's fiscal year-end): 

December 31, 2017 
Month / Day/ Year 

NA 
Reporter's Legal En lily Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address 

Citizens Bancshares Inc. 
Legal Tille or Holding Company 

201 Main Avenue/ P .0. Box 310 
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street/ p_Q, Box 

Weston VW 26452 ------
City Stale Zip Coda 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 
Julie M. Bush CFO -----------Nama Tille 

304-517-1036 
Area Code I Phone Number/ Extension 

304-269-7886 
Area Code/ FAA Number 

jbush@citizensba nkweston. com 
E-mail Address 

NIA 
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of ~ __ 
this report submission? . .... .... ..... , .. ... .. ...... .. ...... ~ 
In accordance wilh the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a lelter justifying this request is being provided along 
with the report ... ... ..... .. ..... ..... .. ...... .. ................ ..... . 0 

2. a letter justifying this request has been provided separalely ... 0 
NOTE: Information for which confidential treatment Is being requested 

must be provided separately and labeled 
as "confidential." 

Pub lie repof11ng burden ror this Information co\lec\lon Is estimated lo vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per re8ponse, wilh an average of 5.50 hours per response, includL-lg Ume lo gather and 
maintain data In 1he required rorm and lo review instructions and complele lhe inrormallon collection. Send comments regarding lhis burden estimate or any olhor aspect ol lhls collection or 
inrormalion, including suggestions ror reducing this burden lo: Secretary, Board of Governors or the Federal Rese,ve System, 20th end C Streets, NW, \Nashlnglon, OC 20551, and lo \he 
Office or Management and Bu<lgel, Paperworlt Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington , DC 20503. 03/201S 
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Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies 
below. 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street I P.O_ Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 
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Results: A list of branches for your depository institution: CITIZENS BANK OF WESTON, l~C., THE (ID_RSSO: 639633}, 

This depository institution is held by CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. (1133969) of WESTON, WV. 

The data are as of 12/31/2017. Data reflects information that was received and processed through 01/04/2018 

R«cmc~iadon ;md Ytrifp;lcn 5tieps 
L ln the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column 

~ 
OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK' in the Data Action column. 

Change: lfthe b~nch Information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change' in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column. 
Oose: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Clo~· in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column, 

Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depositol')' institution, enter 'Delete' in the Data Action column, 

Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column. 

If printing this list, VoU may need to adjust your page setup in M5 Excel. Try using landscape orientation, paie scaling, and/or legal sized paper. 

Submission Proc.edu~ 

When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact. See the detailed instructions on this site for more information. 

If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail , 

Note: 

To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Dose, Delete, or Add 

The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy fOl"mat or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://ylOonline.federalreserve,gov. 

• FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and IO_RSSO oolum11s are for reference only. Verification of these values tS not required, 

Olu,~ IEff«t:Wli0ate-:leranch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD• f Po~i..r Narnt ~red.Address (Qtv !Sta.le Zip COdc Jcounty 
OK I (Full Service !Head Office 639633ICITIZENS BAN'K"OF-WESTON'. 1NC... THE 201 MAIH Avt NUf I WESTON I ,w 26412 I LEWlS 
0< full Service 1400438 I IAN E LEW BRANCH •I INOUSTIUALPAIIX ROAD IWIE Lew IWV 2&111 ILl'I' 

Count_!Y (FDICUNINUM• !Office Number• IH.e-ad Office 

UNITED STATES JNot ReQuired (Not Re_g_uired I CITIUHS 8A.NCOf.Wcs:r_o~.-~_c;.,_!!f_E 
UNITTDSTATES (ritot ~9Ltlred_ jNot Re_g_uired IOT12.EHS B.ANk'OS: WESTON'. 114_C, TH! 

~~•d Off.ic• ID_QS.50• I Comments 

639633 
63%33 





Form FR Y-6 

Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
Weston, West Virginia 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

Report Item 

1: The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its stockholders. Three 
copies are enclosed. 

2: Organization Chart 

2a: Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
Weston, WV U.S.A. 

"No LEI" 
Incorporated in West Virginia 

I 
100% 

I 
The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. 

Weston, WV U.S.A. 
"No LEI" 

Incorporated in West Virginia 

2b: Submitted via email on March 27, 2018. 

3: Securities holders 

(1 )(a)(b)c) Information pertaining to stockholders of record that directly or indirectly own, control, 
or hold with power to vote 5 percent or more of any class of voting securities of the 
bank holding company shown on page 2 of the proxy statement for the annual 
shareholders meeting to be held April 21, 2018. Please note that Securty National 
Trust Company, Wheeling, WV, 26003, is incorporated in the USA and all three 
members of the Advisory Committee that votes the stock are citizens of the USA. The 
proxy statement is submitted herewith and is incorporated herein by reference. Further, 
the T.A. Whelan Trust owns 702,800 shares or 50.2% of the outstanding shares on 
record. The Advisory Committee members are Gene H. Edwards, Jr., W.T. Weber, Jr., 
and W.T. Weber, Ill. 

(2)(a)(b)c) None 





Form FR Y-6 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 
Report Item 4: Insiders 
(1) (2) (3)(a)(b)(c) and (4)(a)(b)(c) (4)(c) 

Names of other companies 
(includes partnerships) 

(2) (3)(c) (4)(a) (4)(b) if 25% or more of voting 
(1) Principal (3)(a) (3)(b) Title & Position with Percentage of Percentage of securities are held (List 
Name, Occupation if other Title & Position Title & Position Other Businesses Voting Shares in Voting Shares names of companies and 
City, State, than with Bank with Bank Holding with Subsidiary (include names of Bank Holding in Subsidiary percentage of voting 
Country Holding Company Company Citizens Bank other businesses) Company Citizens Bank securities held) 

-- -

Gene H. Edwards, Jr. Retired Director & Director & N/A 1.76%* N/A** N/A 
Weston, WV Vice-Chairman & Vice-Chairman 
USA Secretary & Secretary 

W. T. Weber, Jr. Attorney Director & Director & Attorney 2.65%* NIA** Black Dog, LLC (50%) 
Weston, WV Chairman & Chairman Weber & Weber Weber & Weber 
USA President Weston, WV USA a proprietorship (100%) 

W. T. Weber, Ill Attorney Director & Director Attorney 0.09% N/A** Black Dog, LLC (50%) 
Weston, WV Treasurer Weber & Weber 
USA Weston, WV USA 

James L. Sherrell Retired Director Director N/A 0.00% N/A** NIA 
Weston, WV 
USA 

Charles C. Stalnaker President & CEO Director Director N/A 0.00% N/A** N/A 
Weston, WV Citizens Bank President & CEO 
USA 

R. Dennis Xander President Director Director President 0.00% NIA** Denex Petroleum Corp 
Buckhannon, WV Denex Petroleum Denex Petroleum S Corp (100%) 
USA Denex Diversified Ventures 

C Corp (100%) 

T. A. Whelan Trust 50.20% 
*voted by Advisory Com 

* This includes 702,800 shares owned by Security National Trust Company as successor Trustee of JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA as successor Trustee of Bank One, 
West Virginia, N.A., as successor Trustee of the Charleston National Bank as Trustee of the Estate of T. A. Whelan, deceased, and voted by Advisory Committee which 
consists of Gene H. Edwards, Jr., W. T. Weber, Jr. and W. T. Weber, Ill. Gene H. Edwards, Jr., recieves 8.3341 % of the trust income. 

**The subsidiary is owned 100% by Holding Company. 
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A Message for our Stockholders 

The year just ended marked another profitable year for Citizens Bancshares and its sole 
subsidiary Citizens Bank. We are pleased to provide you with the 2017 Annual Report. It was another 
successful year with growth in earnings and deposits. 

The success of 2017 was tempered by the loss of W.E. "Webb" Ballard. Webb faithfully and 
honorably served your bank, the shareholders, depositors, customers, officers and staff for 29 years. His 
participation and sage advice will be greatly missed by the remaining board members, officers and staff. 

We finished the year with total assets of $204,093,000, an increase of 6.8% from the 2016 total 
of $191,130,0001 . Deposits were $166,849,000 at year end, an increase of $8,484,000 or 5.4%. Loans 
totaled $119,408,000, down 1.0% from the 2016 total of $120,511,000. Citizens Bancshares remains 
strong with total stockholders' equity of $19,883,000 and a capital to assets ratio of 9. 7%. 

Earnings in 2017 of $2,009,000 reflected an increase of $229,000 or 12.89%. The current interest 
rate environment, with measured increases, is beginning to relieve the pressure on our net interest 
margin. We continue to maintain our liquidity at historically high levels to effectively manage interest 
rate risk. Current economic forecasts project continued slow measured increase(s) in interest rates. 
Your bank remains positioned to profit from these increases. 

The 2017 return on average assets was 1.02%, up from .92% in 2016, an increase of 10.9%. Total 
dividends paid in 2017 were $1.17 per share for a total payout of $1,638,000. From 2004 to 2017 annual 
dividends have increased from $1,120,000 to $1,638,000. In recognition of your bank's improving 
performance the board of directors has increased the quarterly dividend for 2018 from .23 cents to .25 
cents per share, an increase of 8.7%. 

In July 2017 Joyce Morrison, Operations Officer resigned after 30 years of service. Roberta 
Garton, was named Operations Officer in September 2017. 

We are hopeful that the economy will improve during 2018. However, improvement will be slow 
in our area and challenges will remain. We recognize that the past success of Citizens Bank and our 
ability to meet the challenges of the future is due to the hard work and dedication of our staff. With the 
guidance of our board of directors and the continuing efforts of our staff we look forward to another 
successful year in 2018. 

r shareholders, for your continued trust and support. 

Chairman and President, 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

CRlG~ 
Charles C. Stalnaker 
President and C.E.O. 
The Citizens Bank of Weston 

1The increase in total assets for year end 2016, from the prior report, was a result of the 
reclassification of deferred tax assets and liabilities. 



To the Board of Directors 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
Weston, West Virginia 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and 
subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Ma11ageme11t's Respo11sibilitv for the Fimmcia/ Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fail· presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1•ro1·. 

A uditor's Respo11sibilitv 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that arc 
approp1·iate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies usecl and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

2857 White Hall Blvd.• Fai1mont, WV 26554 • 304.366.2270 phone• 304.366.2338 fax• conleycpagrn11p.co111 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the years 
ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emplwsi~· of Matier 
As discussed in Note 19 to the fmancial statements, for the year ended Decembel' 31, 2017, the 
Company adopted new accounting guidance ASU 2018-02 - Reclassification of Certain Tax 
Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

~tflf\~~LLL 
Fairmont, West Virginia 
March 5, 2018 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
ASSETS 

Cash and due from banks (Note 2) $ 31,829,024 $ 23,490,060 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 3.3702869 3335340 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,1992893 26,825,400 

Investment securities (Note 3) 
Securities available-for-sale at approximate market value 48,340,413 42,492,009 

Loans (Note 4) 119,408,407 120,511,150 
Allowance for loan losses {1.193.220) {1.083367) 

Net Loans 118.215.187 119.427 ,783 

Bank premises, furniture and equipment, net (Note 5) 1,064,386 1,051,104 
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 1.273.564 1333.483 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 204,093A43 $ 191.129.779 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Deposits (Note 6) 
Non-interest bearing $ 47,052,766 $ 37,369,251 
Interest bearing 119.795.781 120.995.601 

Total Deposits 166,848,547 158,364,852 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Note 7) 16,382,803 12,312,470 
Interest, taxes and other liabilities 979.589 939,492 

Total Liabilities 184.210.939 171.616.814 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock, $.125 par value, 8,000,000 shares authorized; 
1,400,000 shares issued and outstanding 175,000 175,000 

Additional paid-in capital 2,825,000 2,825,000 
Retained earnings (Note 14) 17,557,343 17,072,077 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (Note 13) (674,839) (559,112) 

Total Stockholders' Equity 19,882.504 19.512.965 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 204Jl93~43 $ 19] ,129,'.Z'.29 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

2017 
INTEREST INCOME 

Interest and fees on loans $ 6,441,840 
Deposits in other banks 34,008 
Investment securities: 

Taxable 726,975 
Tax-exempt 92,256 

Total Interest Income 7,295,079 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Deposits 422,844 
Other sss29 

Total Interest Expense 478,373 

NET INTEREST INCOME 6,816,706 
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) 120,000 
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 6,696,706 

NONINTEREST INCOME 
Bankcard fees 351,437 
Customer service fees 306,360 
Other operating income 32943 

Total Noninterest Income 690,740 

NONINTEREST EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,955,689 
Occupancy 268,085 
Equipment expense 174,698 
Data processing 394,505 
Other operating expenses (Note 8) 1J46J03 

Total Noninterest Expenses 4,039.180 

Income Before Income Taxes 3,348,266 
Income Taxes (Note 9) l,339JOO 

NET INCOME $2,009.066 

Net Income Per Common Share $ 1.44 

2016 

$5,903,645 
16,199 

630,473 
128J03 

6,678,520 

457,218 
37,188 

494,406 

6,184,114 
328S98 

s,ssss16 

326,121 
323,878 
44937 

694936 

1,880,937 
214,826 
171,852 
356,817 

1J87J87 
3911.719 

2,638,733 
859,000 

$ 1J79J33 

$ 1.27 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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2015 

$5,509,676 
3,.%3 

700,432 
163,645 

6,377,116 

509,928 
33961 

543,889 

5,833,227 
202,188 

5,631,039 

324,767 
255,625 
54.083 

634,475 

1,816,298 
206,875 
174,424 
321,914 

1J63963 
3,783,474 

2,482,040 
780SOO 

$ lJOl.540 

$ 1.22 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

2017 2016 

Net Income $ 2,009,066 $1,779,733 

Other Comprehensive (Loss), net of tax: 

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities: 
Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising 

during period (Net of tax of $13,000, $168,300, 
and $70,100) (18,436) (253,416) 

(18,436) (253,416) 

Defined benefit pension plans: 

Net gain (loss) arising during period (Net of 
tax of $(5,443), $6,105, and $68,286) 10,566 (11,825) 

Add: ASC 715 Event (Net of tax of $(15,463), 
$-0-, and $(9,281)) 30,016 

Less: amortization of prior service cost 
included in net periodic pension cost 
(Net of tax of $12,195, $12,195, and $12,195) (23,673) (23,673) 

16,909 (35,498) 

Other Comprehensive (Loss) (1,527) (288,914) 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 2~07~32 $ 1~20JU2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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2015 

$1,701,540 

(105J53) 
(105J53) 

(132,440) 

18,015 

(23,673) 
(138,098) 

(243,351) 

$ !~58,182 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

Accumulated 
Additional Other Total 

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders' 
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) 

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 175,000 $ 2,825,000 $16,866,804 $ (26,847) 

Net income 1,701,540 

Other comprehensive (loss) (243,351) 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Cash dividends - $1.17 per share (1,638,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2015 175,000 2,825,000 16~30,344 (270,198) 

Net income 1,779,733 

Other comprehensive (loss) (288~14) 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Cash dividends - $1.17 per share (1,638,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2016 175,000 2,825,000 17,072,077 (559,112) 

Net income 2,009,066 

Other comprehensive (loss) (1,527) 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Reclassification for effects of 
remeasuring def erred tax 
asset (Note 19) 114,200 (114,200) 

Cash dividends - $1.17 per share (1,638,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 17.5!000 $ 2,825,000 $17.~57.J43 $ (67.4,832) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Equity 

$19,839~57 

1,701,540 

(243.351) 

1,458,189 

(1,638,000) 

19,660,146 

1,779,733 

(288.914) 

1,490,819 

(1,638,000) 

19,512~65 

2,009,066 

(1,527) 

2,007,539 

(1,638,000) 

$12~82~04 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

2017 2016 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income $ 2,009,066 $ 1,779,733 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for loan losses 120,000 328,598 
Depreciation, amortization and accretion, net 183,449 268,106 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 129,200 (27,000) 
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable and other assets (64,992) 2,282 
Increase (decrease) in interest payable and other liabilities 65,717 (124,375) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,442A40 2J,27J44 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Securities available-for-sale 

Proceeds from maturities and calls 19,439,910 34,924,260 
Payments for purchases (25,357,529) (29,930,085) 

Net decrease (increase) in loans 1,092,596 (9,967,539) 
(Additions) to premises, furniture and equipment {158,952) (161,736) 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES (4,983,975) (5,135,100) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 8,483,695 (4,175,777) 
Net increase (decrease) in repurchase agreements 4,070,333 943,993 
Cash dividends (1.6381000) (1,6381000) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 10,916,028 (4$69,784) 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,374,493 (7,777,540) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 26,825,400 34.602.940 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 3S,l22i§2J $ 26.825.400 

2015 

$ 1,701,540 

202,188 
317,024 

(7,500) 
322 

68,798 
2.282,372 

25,338,518 
(23,489,162) 

1,015,266 
(156.187) 

2,708,435 

6,019,259 
(116,239) 

(1,638.000) 

4J,65,020 

9,255,827 

25,347,113 

$ 3~,602~~0 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. (the 
Company) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. (the Bank). All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The 
Company consolidates subsidiaries in which it either holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% 
of the voting rights or where it exercises control. The Company has no other entities that are 
required to be consolidated under generally accepted accounting principles. 

Nature of Operations 
The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through 
its offices in Lewis County, West Virginia. Its primary market area is Lewis, Upshur, and Harrison 
Counties, West Virginia. Its primary deposit products are demand deposits, savings and term 
certificate accounts and its primary lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and 
consumer loans. 

Use of Estimates 
In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP), management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance 
sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant 
change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of 
deferred tax assets, other-than-temporary impairments of securities, and the fair value of financial 
instruments. 

Reclassifications 
Certain items from 2016 and 2015 have been reclassified to conform to 2017 financial statement 
presentation. 

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 
Most of the Company's activities are with customers located within Lewis, Upshur, and Harrison 
Counties, West Virginia. Note 3 discusses the types ,of securities the Company utilizes for 
investments. Note 4 discusses the types of loans the Company grants to its customers. At 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank's loan portfolio contained a concentration in commercial 
rental real estate of approximately 20% and 21 % , respectively. There were no other 
concentrations of loans to any other categories of borrowers which exceeded 10% of total loans. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash 
and balances due from banks, federal funds sold, and certain interest-bearing deposits in other 
banks. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Securities 
Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. Debt 
securities that the Company has the positive intent and the ability to hold to maturity are carried at 
amortized cost. Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time are classified as available for sale 
and carried at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on securities classified as available 
for sale are carried as a separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), 
net of deferred income taxes. 

Gains or losses on sales of securities recognized by the specific identification method are reported in 
securities gains and losses within noninterest income or noninterest expense of the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. The Company reviews securities on a quarterly basis for possible 
impairment. The Company determines whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost 
basis of a security is other-than-temporary. This determination requires significant judgment. In 
making this judgment, the Company's review includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances of 
each individual investment such as the severity of loss, the length of time the fair value has been 
below cost, the expectation for that security's performance, the creditworthiness of the issuer, 
recent changes in external credit ratings, and the assessment of collection of the security's 
contractual amounts from the issuer or issuers. 

If the Company intends to sell, or it is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell an 
impaired debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period credit 
loss, other-than-temporary impairment is recognized in earnings. The credit loss is defined as the 
difference between the present value of cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost 
basis. The amount recognized in earnings is equal to the entire difference between the security's 
amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date. If the Company does not intend to 
sell, and is not more likely than not it will be required to sell the impaired debt security prior to 
recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period credit loss, the other-than-temporary 
impairment is separated into the following: 1) the amount representing the credit loss, which is 
recognized within noninterest income or expense of the Consolidated Statements of Income, and 2) 
the amount related to all other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income within 
shareholders' equity of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 
The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Pittsburgh System, is 
required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB. Based on redemption provisions 
of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost. At its discretion, the 
FHLB may declare dividends on the stock. Management reviews for impairment based on the 
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the FHLB stock. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Loans 
The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to its customers. A substantial 
portion of the loan portfolio is represented by residential and commercial mortgage loans 
throughout Lewis, Upshur, and Harrison Counties, West Virginia. The ability of the Company's 
debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions 
in this area. 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted 
for the allowance for loan losses and any premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest 
income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees and direct loan 
origination costs are primarily being recognized as collected and incurred. The use of this method 
of recognition does not produce results that are materially different from results which would have 
been produced if such costs and fees were deferred and amortized as an adjustment of the loan 
yield. Premiums and discounts on purchased loans are amortized as a level yield adjustment over 
the respective term of the loan. 

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 
days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Personal loans are 
typically charged-off no later than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on the contractual 
terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if 
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. 

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is 
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or 
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual 
status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and 
future payments are reasonably assured. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if 
any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 
management's periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the 
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to 
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision 
as more information becomes available. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 
The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to 
loans that are classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is 
established when the discounted cash flows ( or collateral value or observable market price) of the 
impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers non­
classified loans and is based on historical charge-off experience and expected loss given default 
derived from the Company's internal risk rating process. Other adjustments may be made to the 
allowance for pools of loans after an assessment of internal or external influences on credit quality 
that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that 
the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in 
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment 
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines 
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into 
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length 
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the 
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 

Generally, the Company considers impaired loans to include: 

• Loans classified as non-accrual loans 
• Loans which have been classified as substandard, doubtful, or loss and/or which have 

a specific loan loss allocation 
• Loans past due for longer than 90 days that have a principal balance of $50,000 or 

greater 

Periodically, large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans not included in the above 
categories are collectively evaluated for impairment. 

Off-Balance Sheet Credit-related Financial Instruments 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, 
including commercial letters of credit a!lcl sta!}dby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are 
recorded when they are funded. 

Foreclosed Assets 
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at 
fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the 
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and 
changes in the valuation allowance are included in net expenses from foreclosed assets. 
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NOTE 1. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Premises and Equipment 
Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
computed primarily on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

Advertising Costs 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs expensed for the years ended 
December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, were approximately $42,500, $37,500, and $39,400, 
respectively. 

Income Taxes 
The Company evaluates its income tax expense utilizing two components: current and deferred. 
The Company determines current income taxes, i.e. taxes to be paid or refunded for the current 
period, by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of 
deductions over revenues. The Company determines def erred income taxes using the liability ( or 
balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax 
effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted 
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur. 

Def erred income tax expense results from changes in def erred tax assets and liabilities between 
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more-likely-than-not, based on the technical 
merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more-likely­
than-not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination 
also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that 
meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the 
largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon 
settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The 
determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition 
threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and is 
subject to management's judgment. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, 
based on the weight of evidence available, it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of a 
deferred tax asset will not be realized. 

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of operating 
expenses. 

The Company and the Bank are subject to income taxes in the U.S. Federal and West Virginia 
jurisdictions. The Company and its subsidiary file consolidated federal and state income tax 
returns. 

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was enacted in December 2017, had a substantial impact on the 
Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2017. Note 19 discusses the 
impact of the Tax Cuts and Job Acts in more detail. 

Earnings Per Common Share 
Earnings per share represent income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted­
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. 
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NOTE 1. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other 
comprehensive income includes unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale, and unrealized 
losses related to factors other than credit on debt securities, and changes in the funded status of the 
pension plan which are also recognized as separate components of equity. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other 
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 10. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and 
matters of significant judgment. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could 
significantly affect the estimates. 

Cash Flows 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary paid approximately $1,199,000, $854,000, and $768,000 of 
applicable income taxes during 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. The Company made transfers of 
loans to foreclosed assets held for resale of $-0-, $-0-, and $35,000 during 2017, 2016, and 2015, 
respectively. Payments of interest did not vary materially from interest reported on the 
consolidated statements of income for the respective years. 

New Accounting Standards 
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers". ASU 
2014-09 provides a framework to address revenue recognition issues, creating more consistency and 
comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities and industries, and improves the 
usefulness of information provided to financial statement users. This update is effective for the 
Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2019. The Company does not expect ASU No. 
2014-09 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, "Financial Instruments - Overall (ASC 
Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities". 
The amendments in this update aim to enhance the reporting model for financial instruments and 
to provide users of financial statements with more decision-useful information. This update is 
effective for the Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2019. The Company does not 
expect ASU 2016-01 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments". The amendments in ASU No. 
2016-13 reflect an entity's current estimate of all expected credit losses and broadens the 
information an entity must consider in developing its expected credit loss estimate for assets 
measured either collectively or individually, including the use of forecasted information. The 
Company is currently assessing the impact ASU 2016-13 will have on its consolidated financial 
statements and will apply the amendments in this update through a cumulative---i!ffect adjustment 
to retained earnings, as necessary, for the annual reporting period of December 31, 2021. 
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NOTE 1. 

NOTE2. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Standards (Continued) 
In August 2016, the F ASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): 
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments". The objective of ASU No. 2016-15 is 
to reduce the existing diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are 
presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. This update is effective for the Company's 
annual reporting period of December 31, 2019. The Company does not expect ASU 2016-15 to have 
a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits". ASU 
No. 2017-07 reflects changes to improve the presentation of net periodic pension cost and net 
periodic postretirement benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans as well as other 
postretirement benefits. This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting period of 
December 31, 2019. The Company does not expect ASU No. 2017-07 to have a material impact on 
its consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-08, "Receivables-Nonrefundable Fees and Other 
Costs". ASU No. 2017-08 amends the amortization period for certain purchased callable debt 
securities held at a premium, from the contractual life of the instrument to the earliest call date. 
This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2020. The 
Company does not expect ASU No. 2017-08 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

In February 2018, the F ASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, "Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income". ASU No. 2018-02 provides guidance regarding 
reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded 
tax effects resulting from the newly enacted federal corporate income tax rate of 21 % from the 
Company's historical 34% rate. This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting 
period of December 31, 2019, but the Company has chosen to adopt this update for its December 
31, 2017 consolidated financial statements. See Note 19 for further discussion. 

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve 
Bank. The required reserve balance as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, was approximately 
$1,335,000 and $1,286,000, respectively. Additionally, in order to maintain a line of credit, the Bank 
is required to maintain a $5,000 reserve balance account with First National Bankers Bank. 
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NOTE3. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

The amortized cost and fair values of available-for-sale securities, with gross unrealized gains and 
losses are summarized as follows: 

December 31 2 2017 
Gross Gross Approximate 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains {Losses} Value 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GSEs) $ 36,025,708 $ $ (336,433) $ 35,689,275 
State and municipal securities 5,599,116 22,418 (15,176) 5,606,358 
Corporate securities 7,033.006 272694 {15i220) 7,0442780 

$ 48165'.Z~O $ 50,112 $ (J6'.Z~22) $ 4SJ401413 

December 312 2016 
Gross Gross Approximate 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains {Losses} Value 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GSEs) $ 27,843,242 $ 2,279 $ (355,204) $ 27,490,317 
State and municipal securities 9,522,024 58,618 (20,747) 9,559,895 
Corporate securities 524122724 482966 {192893) 5,4412797 

$ 42J'.Z'.Z~20 $ 102~6J $ (J25~44) $ 42,422t902 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-sponsored enterprises (GSEs) include Federal National Mortgage Association, 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal Home Loan 
Banks. 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company held no securities of any single issuer (excluding 
the U.S. government-sponsored enterprises) with a book value that exceeded 10% of 
stockholders' equity. 

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities by contractual maturity at 
December 31, 2017 were as follows: 

Available-for-Sale 
Amortized Fair 

Cost Value 

Due within 1 year $ 4,738,314 $ 4,735,704 
Due after 1 year through 5 years 38,002,514 37,715,592 
Due after 5 years through 10 years 4,486,952 4,469,612 
Due after 10 years 1,430,050 1,419,505 

$ 48..6S1183D $ 48..14D~l3 

Investment securities with an approximate carrying amount of $25,746,000 and $21,569,000 at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other 
purposes required or permitted by law. 

For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, there were no sales of securities. 

Temporarily Impaired Securities 

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the entity's investments with 
unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment 
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position 
at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Temporarily Impaired Securities (Continued) 

Available-for-sale securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position are as follows: 

Decembcl' 31 2017 
Less Than 12 Months Over 12 MontJ1 Total 
Gross Gross Gross 

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair 
(Los ·) Value (Losses) Value (Losses) Value 

U.S. government-sponsored 
enterprises (GSEs) $ (116,085) $19,063,369 $ (220,348) $16,625,906 $ (336,433) $35,689,275 

State and municipal securities (14,492) 2,767,497 (684) 399,316 (15,176) 3,166,813 
Corporate securities (11,,168) 486J67 (4,252) 1,844,638 (15,220) 2J31,005 

Total $ (141,245) $22 31'.Z,233 $ (225,584) $ I 8J!62 860 $ (367~22) $41187 023 

December 31. 2016 
Less Than 12 Months Over 12 Months Total 
Gross Gross Gross 

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair 
(Losses) Value (Losses} Value (Losses} Value 

U.S. government-sponsored 
enterprises (GSEs) $ (355,204) $23,484,602 $ $ $ (355,204) $23,484,602 

State and municipal securities (20,747) 4,248,529 (20,747) 4,248,529 
Corporate securities (19~93) 11,!i28,848 (19~93) 11~28,848 

Total $ (375,251) $27,133,131 $ (12.1123) $11 .828,848 $ (325,844) $32 561 272 

At December 31, 2017, there were thirty-six GSE securities with a combined unrealized loss of 
$336,433. The contractual cash flows of the GSE securities are guaranteed by an agency of the 
U.S. government. In addition, there were eight state and municipal securities with a combined 
unrealized loss of $15,176, and four corporate bonds with a combined unrealized loss of 
$15,920. 

At December 31, 2016, there were twenty-four GSE securities with a combined unrealized loss 
of $355,204. The contractual cash flows of the GSE securities are guaranteed by an agency of 
the U.S. Government. In addition, there were eleven state and municipal securities with a 
combined unrealized loss of $20,747, and three corporate bonds with a combined unrealized 
loss of $19,893. 

Because the decline in market values is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, 
and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more-likely-than-not the 
Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which 
may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily 
impaired at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment 
Upon acquisition of a security, the Company decides whether it is within the scope of the accounting 
guidance for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets or will be evaluated for impairment 
under the accounting guidance for investments in debt and equity securities. At December 31, 2017 
and 2016, the Company has no beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. 

NOTE 4. LOANS 

Loans and loan commitments are comprised primarily of loans to borrowers in real estate 
development, construction, healthcare, retail/service and other industries in north central West 
Virginia. Collateralization centers primarily around commercial and residential real estate, personal 
property and business equipment. 

A summary of the component balances of loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016, is as follows: 

Mortgage loans on real estate: 
Residential 1-4 family 
Commercial and agricultural 
Construction and land development 

Total Mortgage Loans on Real Estate 

Commercial and agricultural loans 

Consumer installment loans - personal 
Total Gross Loans 

Less Unearned Discount 

Total Loans 

Troubled Debt Restructurings 

2017 

$ 39,262,594 
38,509,607 

128242722 
79,596,923 

32,857,139 

720821041 
119,536,103 

(1272696) 

$ 112.408~07 

2016 

$ 39,683,003 
36,556,714 

797.144 
77,036,861 

37,191,394 

6.424.913 
120,653,168 

(1422018) 

$ l20,;ill 11SO 

The restructuring of a loan is considered a "troubled debt restructuring" if both (1) the debtor is 
experiencing financial difficulties and (2) the creditor has granted a concession. Concessions may 
include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal forgiveness, restructuring 
amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. As of December 31, 
2017 and 2016, troubled debt restructurings totaled approximately $2,347,000 and $2,078,000, 
respectively, and were comprised of twenty and fifteen lending relationships, respectively. For 2017 
and 2016, no troubled debt restructurings had defaulted and amounts specifically reserved in the 
allowance for loan loss were $66,000 and $63,000, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 is 
as follows: 

Balance beginning of period 
Loans charged-off 
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off 
Provision for loan losses 
Balance end of period 

$ 1,083,367 
(11,474) 

1,327 
120,000 

$ 1.193.220 

$ 1,053,292 
(300,698) 

2,175 
328,598 

$ 1,083,367 

$ 1,068,889 
(220,125) 

2,340 
202,188 

$ 1.053.292 

The Bank maintains a loan grading system to reflect the credit quality of commercial loans. 
Commercial loan risk grades are determined based on an evaluation of the relevant characteristics of 
each loan, assigned at the inception of each loan and adjusted thereafter at any time to reflect changes 
in the risk profile and sustainability of the primary source of repayment and overall financial strength 
of the borrower. This includes an analysis of cash flow available to repay debt, profitability, liquidity, 
leverage, and overall financial trends. Other factors include management, industry or property type 
risks, an assessment of secondary sources of repayment such as collateral or guarantees, other terms 
and conditions of the loans that may increase or reduce its risk, and economic conditions and other 
external factors that may influence repayment capability and financial condition. 

The Bank engages an external consultant to conduct an annual review of all commercial borrowers 
with an aggregate indebtedness of $500,000 or greater. 

The Bank uses an eight-point risk rating system. The first five categories are considered not criticized, 
and are aggregated as "Pass" rated. The criticized rating categories utilized by management generally 
follow bank regulatory definitions. 

Loans classified as Special Mention have potential weaknesses that deserve management's close 
attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment 
prospects for the loans or in the credit position at some future date. Borrowers may be experiencing 
adverse operating trends such as declining revenues or margins. Adverse economic or market 
conditions, such as interest rate increases or the entry of a new competitor, may also support a special 
mention rating. Nonfinancial reasons for rating a loan as Special Mention include management 
problems, pending litigation, an ineffective loan agreement or other material structural weakness, and 
any other significant deviation from prudent lending practices. 

Loans classified as Substandard are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying 
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined 
weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt by the borrower. They are 
characterized by the distinct possibility the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not 
corrected. They require more intensive supervision by management. Substandard loans are generally 
characterized by current or expected unprofitable operations, inadequate debt service coverage, 
inadequate liquidity, or marginal capitalization. Repayment may depend on collateral. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

Loans classified as Doubtful are loans that have all the weaknesses inherent in one classified as 
Substandard with the added characteristic the weaknesses make collection in full, on the basis of 
currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. Loans classified 
as Doubtful have a high probability of total or substantial loss, but because of specific pending events 
that may strengthen the loan, its classification as Loss is deferred. Doubtful borrowers are usually in 
default, lack adequate liquidity or capital, and lack the resources necessary to remain an operating 
entity. 

Residential real estate and consumer loans are not assigned specific risk grades. These loans are 
graded based upon an individual loan's delinquency status. All loans that are less than 90 days past 
due are considered "Pass". Loans that are greater than 90 days past due are considered 
"Substandard". 

The following tables represent the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate Pass and 
the criticized categories of Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016: 

Pass 

Special Mention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

Pass 

Special Mention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

2017 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total 

$ 35,599,908 $ 30,389,260 $ 37,461,925 $ 7,027,464 $ 110,478,557 

2,466,613 573,423 540,698 3,580,734 

2,140,112 1,894,456 1,259,971 54,577 5,349,116 

$ 40.206.633 $ 32.857.139 $ 39.262.594 $ 7,082.041 $119.408.407 

2016 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total 

$ 33,833,212 $ 36,888,880 $ 37,630,651 $ 6,349,944 $ 114,702,687 

186,764 186,764 

3,378,628 302,514 1,865,588 74,969 5,621,699 

$ 37.211.840 $ 37.191394 $ 39.683.003 $ 6.424.913 $ 120.511.150 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

Management further monitors the performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio by analyzing 
the age of the portfolio. Measurement of delinquency and past due status are based on the contractual 
terms of each loan. 

Past due loans are reviewed on a monthly basis to identify loans for nonaccrual status. Generally, 
when collection in full of the principal and interest is jeopardized, the loan is placed on nonaccrual. 
The accrual of interest income on most loans generally is discontinued when a loan becomes 90 to 120 
days past due as to principal and interest. However, regardless of delinquency status, if a loan is fully 
secured and in the process of collection and resolution of collection is expected in the near term 
(generally less than 90 days), then the loan will not be placed on nonaccrual. When interest accruals 
are discontinued, unpaid interest recognized in income in the current year is reversed, and unpaid 
interest accrued in prior years is charged to the allowance for loan losses. The Bank's method of 
income recognition for loans that are classified as nonaccrual is to recognize interest income on a cash 
basis or apply the cash receipt to principal when the ultimate collectability of principal is in doubt. 
Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when the estimated net realizable value of 
collateral exceeds the principal balance and accrued interest, and the loan is in the process of 
collection. Nonaccrual loans will not normally be returned to accrual status unless all past due 
principal and interest has been paid. 

The following tables present the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aging categories of 
performing loans and nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

2017 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total 

Current $ 37,946,575 $32,654,806 $ 36,818,439 $ 6,860,845 $114,280,665 
30-90 Days 1,220,936 166,263 1,596,304 185,440 3,168,943 
>90Days 174,122 168,296 342,418 

Subtotal 39,341,633 32,821,069 38,583,039 7,046,285 117,792,026 

Nonaccrual 865,000 36,070 679,555 35,756 1.616.381 

TOTAL $ 40J06~33 $ 32,85'.Z,132 $ 32,262~94 $ '.Z,!!82,!!41 :s n2.4osaoz 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

LOANS (CONTINUED) 

2016 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer 

Current $ 35,908,714 $ 36,374,866 $ 37 ,444,125 $ 6,208,163 
30-90Days 457,926 791,540 1,554,004 202,972 
>90Days 28.208 3.341 

Subtotal 36,366,640 37,166,406 39,026,337 6,414,476 

Nonaccrual 845.200 24,988 656,666 10,437 

TOTAL $ 3'.Z.211J}40 $ 3'.Z.121 J24 $ 32Ji8JJ!OJ $ 6"424~13 

Total 
$ 115,935,868 

3,006,442 
31,549 

118,973,859 

1,537,291 

$ 120~11 ,150 

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the opinion of management, based on current information 
and events, the collection of principal and interest in accordance with the loan contract is doubtful. 
Typically, the Bank does not consider loans for impairment unless a sustained period of delinquency 
(i.e. 90-plus days) is noted or there are subsequent events that impact repayment probability (i.e. 
negative financial trends, bankruptcy filings, eminent foreclosure proceedings, etc.). Consistent with 
the Bank's existing method of income recognition for loans, interest on impaired loans, except those 
classified as nonaccrual, is recognized as income using the accrual method. Impaired loans, or 
portions thereof, are charged off when deemed uncollectible. 

The following tables set forth the Bank's impaired loan information by class of loans as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

2017 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate ommercial Real Estate Consumer Total 

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment $ 332,008 $ 32,733 $ 650,937 $ $ 1,015,678 
Related Allowance 15,511 5,000 55,231 75,742 

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment 1,982,226 1,861,723 738,999 54,577 4,637,525 

Total Impaired Loans: 
Recorded 

Investment 2,314,234 1,894,456 1,389,936 54,577 5,653,203 
Unpaid Principal 

Balance 2,314,234 1,894,456 1,389,936 54,577 5,653,203 
Average Recorded 

Investment 2,846,431 1,098,485 1,721,144 64,773 5,730,833 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

LOANS (CONTINUED) 

2016 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Conslliller 

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment $ 180,419 $ $ 482,524 $ 
Related Allowance 13,181 52,262 

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment 3,198,209 302,514 1,569,828 74,969 

Total Impaired Loans: 
Recorded 

Investment 3,378,628 302,514 2,052,352 74,969 
Unpaid Principal 

Balance 3,378,628 302,514 2,052,352 74,969 
Average Recorded 

Investment 3,300,035 178,909 1,628,708 73,599 

Total 

$ 662,943 
65,443 

5,145,520 

5,808,463 

5,808,463 

5,181,251 

The following table summarizes the recognition of interest income on impaired loans for the years 
ended December 31: 

Average impaired loans 

Amount of contractual interest on impaired loans 

Amount of interest income recognized on a cash basis 

21 

$ 5,731,000 $ 5,181,000 $ 4,226,000 

271,000 

247,000 

308,000 

284,000 

275,000 

163,000 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

The allowance for loan losses is management's estimate of the probable credit losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio. Management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the 
appropriate provision for credit losses is based upon a quarterly evaluation of the portfolio. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective and requires significant estimates, including the amounts and 
timing of estimated future cash flows, estimated losses on pools of loans based on historical loss 
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which are susceptible to constant and 
significant change. Allocations are made for specific loans based upon management's estimate of the 
borrower's ability to repay and other factors impacting collectability. Other loans not specifically 
reviewed are segregated by class and allocations are made based upon historical loss percentages 
adjusted for current environmental factors. The environmental factors considered for the portfolio 
includes estimated probable inherent but undetected losses within the portfolio due to uncertainties in 
economic conditions, delays in obtaining information, including unfavorable information about a 
borrower's financial condition, the difficulty in identifying triggering events that correlate perfectly to 
subsequent loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet fully manifested themselves in Joss a1location 
factors. In addition, a portion of the allowance accounts for the inherent imprecision in the allowance 
for credit loss analysis. During 2017 and 2016, there were no material changes to the accounting 
policy or methodology related to the a1lowance for loan losses. 

Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the a1lowance for loan losses, whiJe recoveries of 
previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses. 

The following tables summarize the primary segments of the Allowance for Loan Loss segregated into 
the amount required for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for 
Joans co1lective1y evaluated for impairment. Activity in the allowance is presented for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Balance, 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

Beginning $ 324,201 
Chargeoffs 
Recoveries 
Provision 52389 
Balance, Ending $ 376i590 

Portfolio Loans: 
Individually 

evaluated for 
impairment 

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 

Total Portfolio 
Loans 

$ 1,919,494 

38,287,139 

$ 40,206.633 

Other 
Commercial 

2017 
Residential 
Real Estate 

$ 293,778 $ 412,190 

(16,188) 66,097 
$ 277i590 $ 478.287 

$ 140,182 $ 1,163,787 

32,716957 38,098,807 

$ 32Ji57,139 $ 39262i594 
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Consumer 

$ 

$ 

$ 

53,198 
(11,474) 

1,327 
17,702 
60J53 

7,082,041 

$7,082J)4] 

Total 

$ 1,083,367 
(11,474) 

1,327 
120,000 

$ l,193J20 

$ 3,223,463 

116,184944 

$ 119A08.4Q7 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

LOANS (CONTINUED) 

2016 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer 

Balance, 
Beginning $ 286,580 $ 318,581 $ 389,147 $ 58,984 

Chargeoffs (282,185) (18,513) 
Recoveries 100 2,075 
Provision 319,806 (24,803) 22,943 10,652 
Balance, Ending $ 324.201 $ 293J78 $ 412.190 $ 53.198 

Portfolio Loans: 
Individually 

evaluated for 
impairment $ 1,856,886 $ 19,800 $ 1,010,410 $ 

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 35,354,954 37,171~94 38,672~93 6A24,913 

Total Portfolio 
Loans $ 37,211.840 $ 37.191.394 $ 39.683.003 $ 6.424,913 

BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

Total 

$ 1,053,292 
(300,698) 

2,175 
328~98 

$ 1.083.367 

$ 2,887,096 

117,624,054 

$ 120.511.150 

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment at December 31, 
2017 and 2016, is as follows: 

Land 
Bank premises 
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 

Allowance for depreciation 

$ 376,342 
2,312,303 
1,305,923 
3,994,568 

(2,930,182) 
$ 1.064.386 

$ 376,342 
2,272,803 
1.186.471 
3,835,616 

(2,784~12) 
$ 1.051.104 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 was approximately 
$146,000, $150,000, and $147,000, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 6. DEPOSITS 

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more at December 31, 2017 
and 2016, was approximately $2,263,000 and $3,090,000, respectively. 

At December 31, 2017, the approximate scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

2018 $ 14,710,000 
2019 4,901,000 
2020 2,629,000 
2021 5,008,000 
2022 and thereafter 3,878,000 

$ 31!126,000 

NOTE 7. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, are 
reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with the transaction. The Company may be 
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The 
majority of the Bank's securities sold under agreements to repurchase are for periods of six months or 
less. 

Additional information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

Average amount 

Average interest rate 

Balance at end of year 

Interest expense 

NOTE 8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 

2017 

$ ]4949.000 

0.37% 

$ 16.382.803 

$ 55.527 

2016 

$ 11.787 .900 

0.31% 

$ ]2.3l2A70 

$ 37,068 

The following items of other operating expense exceeded one percent of total revenue for at least one of 
the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015: 

Other Noninterest Expense: 
Director's fees 
FDIC and state fees 
Bankcard processing expense 
All other operating expenses 

Total 

2017 

$ 441,000 
74,935 

173,973 
556J95 

$ 1J46JOJ 
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2016 2015 

$ 444,700 $ 433,800 
111,803 126,893 
160,995 157,344 
569.789 545,226 

$ 1J87~7 $ 1~3963 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES 

The allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and def erred expenses for the years 
ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 is as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 
Current tax expense: 

Federal $ 1,072,000 $ 788,000 $ 700,000 
State 1381000 981000 88.000 

1.2101000 886:000 788:000 
Deferred tax (benefit) expense: 

Federal 136,700 (23,000) (6,400) 
State (7JOO) (4,000) (11100) 

129JOO (271000) (7JOO) 
INCOME TAXES $ 1.339.200 $ 859.000 $ 780.500 

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax 
rates for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 are summarized as follows: 

2017 2016 2015 

Amount % Amount % Amount % 

Statutory federal tax rate $ 1,138,400 34.0% $ 897,200 34.0% $ 843,900 34.0% 
Increase (decrease) 

resulting from: 
State taxes, net of federal 

tax benefit 83,600 2.5% 60,700 2.3% 57,000 2.3% 
Tax-exempt income (53,900) (1.6%) (68,500) (2.6%) (81,600) (3.3%) 
Other items, net 71700 0.2% (30,400) (1.2%) (381800) (1.6%) 

1,175,800 35.1% 859,000 32.5% 780,500 31.4% 

Change in federal tax rate 163,400 4.9% 

INCOME TAXES $ lr139,200 40,0% $ 859.000 32.5% $ 780.500 31.4% 

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act") was signed into law. The Tax Act 
lowered the Company's historical federal corporate tax rate from 34% to 21 % effective January 1, 
2018 and made numerous other tax law changes. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires companies to recognize the effect of tax law changes in the period of enactment. As a 
result, the Company recorded deferred income tax expense of $163,400 in 2017 due to the required 
remeasurement of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED) 

The components of the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) at December 31, 2017 and 2016, are as 
follows: 

2017 2016 

Def erred tax assets: 
Provision for loan loss $ 218,900 $ 305,600 
Employee benefit plans 90,200 158,600 
Net unrealized depreciation on AFS securities 852700 1142000 

Gross deferred tax assets 394.800 578,200 

Deferred tax (liabilities): 
Depreciation (94,500) (133,000) 
Accretion on investments (52400) (102000) 

Gross deferred tax (liabilities) (99.900) (143,000) 

Net Def erred Tax Asset $ 224r200 $ 435.200 

No deferred income tax asset valuation was provided since it is more-likely-than-not that realization of 
the deferred income tax assets will occur in future years. 

The Company's evaluation on December 31, 2017, revealed no uncertain tax positions that would have 
a material impact on the financial statements. The 2014 through 2017 tax years remain subject to 
examination by the tax authorities. The Company does not believe that any reasonably possible 
changes will occur within the next twelve months that will have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Determination of Fair Value 

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and 
liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted 
market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company's 
various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are 
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash 
flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the 
instrument. 

The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an 
orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at 
the measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the 
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of 
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which 
willing market participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions 
depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment. The fair value is 
a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value under current market 
conditions. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

The Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured at fair value in 
three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of 
the assumptions used to determine fair value. 

Level 1-Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities 
generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations 
are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets 
or liabilities. 

Level 2-Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full 
term of the asset or liability. 

27 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued) 

Level 3-Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include 
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which determination of fair value 
requires significant management judgment or estimation. 

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the company in estimating fair value disclosures 
for financial instruments: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate fair values based on the 
short-term nature of the assets. 

Securities 
Fair value estimates are based on pricing models and discounted cash flows that consider standard 
input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, 
broker/dealer quotes, and credit spreads, if quoted market prices are not available. 

Loans Receivable 
For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair 
values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain mortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four family 
residential) and other consumer loans are based on quoted market prices of similar loans sold in 
conjunction with securitization transactions, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. Fair 
values for other loans (e.g., commercial real estate and investment property mortgage loans, 
commercial and industrial loans) are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using market 
interest rates for comparable loans. Fair values for non-performing loans are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable. 

Deposit Liabilities 
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, passbook 
savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount 
payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of 
variable rate, fixed term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair 
values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using ~ 
discounted cash flow calculation that applies market interest rates on comparable instruments to 
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Short Term Borrowings 
The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased, borrowings under repurchase agreements, and 
other short term borrowings maturing within ninety days approximate their fair values. Fair 
values of other short term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on 
the company's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. 

Accrued Interest 
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. 

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below: 

Fair Value Mca urements at December 31, 2017 

Investment securities: 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

Available-for-sale $48,340.413 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1) 

$ 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$48.340.413 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2016 

Investment securities: 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

Available-for-sale $42 .492.009 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1) 

$ 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$42A92.002 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 

Certain financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Adjustments to the fair value of these assets usually result 
from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. 
Impaired loans allocated to the Allowance for Loan Losses are measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis. Any fair value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred as provision for 
loan losses expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The following describes the valuation techniques used to measure impaired loans recorded at fair 
value on a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements. 

linpaired Loans: Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management based on 
current information and events, it is probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms 
of the loan agreement will not be collected. Impairment is measured based upon the present value of 
expected future cash flows from the loan discounted at the loan's effective rate and the loan's 
observable market price or the fair value of collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. Fair value is 
measured using a market approach based on the value of the collateral securing the loans. Collateral 
may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment, inventory, and accounts 
receivable. The vast majority of the collateral is real estate. The value of real estate collateral is 
determined utilizing an appraisal conducted by an independent, licensed appraiser outside of the Bank 
using comparable property sales (Level 2). However, if the collateral is a house or building in the 
process of construction or if an appraisal of the real estate property is over two years old, then the fair 
value is considered Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appraisal if 
deemed significant, or the net book value on the applicable business' financial statements if not 
considered significant using observable market data. Likewise, values for inventory and accounts 
receivables collateral are based on financial statement balances or aging reports (Level 3). 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized below: 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2017 

Quoted Prices 
In Active Significant 

Markets for Other 
Total Identical Observable 

Carrying Assets Inputs 
Value (Level 1} (Level 2} 

Impaired Loans $ S16SJJOJ $ $ 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2016 

Quoted Prices 
In Active Significant 

Markets for Other 
Total Identical Observable 

Carrying Assets Inputs 
Value (Level 1} (Level 2) 

Impaired Loans $ 5.808~63 $ $ 

30 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3} 

$ 5,653,203 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3} 

$ S.8081463 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR V ALOE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

NOTEll. 

The estimated fair values, and related carrying or notional amounts, of the Company's financial 
instruments are as follows: 

December 31. 
2017 2016 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

FINANCIAL ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,199,893 $ 35,199,893 $26,825,400 $26,825,400 
Securities available-for-sale 48,340,413 48,340,413 42,492,009 42,492,009 
Federal Home Loan Bank 

stock 82,800 82,800 83,000 83,000 
Loans,net 118,215,187 117,887,244 119,427,783 119,428,356 
Accrued interest receivable 652,946 652,946 548,375 548,375 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 
Deposits 166,848,547 166,871,750 158,364,852 158,383,095 
Repurchase agreements 16,382,803 16,382,803 12,312,470 12,312,470 
Accrued interest payable 69,107 69,107 69,913 69,913 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES 

The Company is a party to credit-related financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the 
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments 
include commitments to extend credit, including lines of credit as well as letters of credit. Such 
commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the 
amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company's exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these 
commitments. The Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for 
on-balance sheet instruments. 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose 
approximate contract amounts represent credit risk: 

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 
Letters-of-credit 
Commitments to grant loans 
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810,000 
322,000 

$ t6A62,ooo 

2016 

$ 11,002,000 
888,000 

1,019,000 
$ 12.909,000 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 11. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Certain commitments, such as equity lines of 
credit, may expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed 
necessary by the Bank, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. 

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit and revolving credit lines are commitments 
for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines-of-credit are generally 
uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to 
the total extent to which the Bank is committed. 

Letters-of-credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support 
private borrowing arrangements. The letters-of-credit issued have expiration dates within one to five 
years. The credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loans to customers. The Bank's policy for obtaining collateral, and the nature of such 
collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
At various times throughout the year, the Company had cash on deposit with other financial 
institutions in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

NOTE 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to principal officers and directors 
and their affiliates. Set forth below is a summary of the related party loan activity for the years ended 
December 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 

Balance, beginning $ 460,800 $ 840,500 
New loans 259,200 110,100 
Repayments (322~00) (4892800) 

Balance, ending $ 327~00 $ 460,800 

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at December 31, 2017 and 2016, were approximately 
$5,104,000 and $5,782,000, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Following are the components of other comprehensive income (loss) as of December 31, 2014, 
and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2016, and 2017: 

Unrealized 
Gain (Loss) Accumulated 

on Securities Minimum Other 
Available- Pension Comprehensive 
For-Sale (Liabilitl'.} Income (Loss) 

December 31, 2014, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Def erred Tax $ 186,689 $ (213,536) $ (26,847) 
Other Comprehensive (Loss) for 2015 

Unrealized (losses) on securities 
available-for-sale (175,353) (175,353) 

Minimum pension liability (209,298) (209,298) 
Def erred income tax effect 70.100 71.200 141JOO 

(10SJ53) (1381098) (243J51) 
December 31, 2015, Accumulated 

Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 
Deferred Tax 81,436 (351,634) (270,198) 

Other Comprehensive (Loss) for 2015 
Unrealized (losses) on securities 

available-for-sale (421,716) (421,716) 
Minimum pension liability (53,798) (53,798) 
Def erred income tax effect 168JOO 18.300 186.600 

(2531416) (35.498) (288~14) 
December 31, 2016, Accumulated 

Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 
Def erred Tax (171,980) (387,132) (559,112) 

Other Comprehensive (Loss) for 2016 
Unrealized (losses) on securities 

available-for-sale (31,436) (31,436) 
Minimum pension liability 25,620 25,620 
Def erred income tax effect 13!000 (8!711) 4.289 

(18,436) 16,909 (1,527) 

Reclassification for effect of remeasuring 
deferred tax asset (Note 19) (41.300) (72~00) (114JOO) 

December 31, 2017, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Def erred Tax $ (231 !716) $ (443!123) $ (674!832) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 14. RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS 

The primary source of funds for the dividends paid by Citizens Bancshares, Inc. is dividends received 
from its subsidiary, The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. The approval of the regulatory agencies is 
required if the total of all dividends declared by the subsidiary bank in any calendar year exceeds the 
subsidiary bank's net profits, as defined, for that year combined with its retained net profits for the 
preceding two calendar years. 

NOTE 15. AVAILABLE BORROWINGS 

The subsidiary bank has available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh a line of credit with 
maximum borrowings as of December 31, 2017, of approximately $53,788,000. This line of credit has a 
variable interest rate based on the Federal Home Loan Bank's cost of funds and is collateralized by 
certain qualifying assets as defined by the agreement. The Bank had no borrowings under this 
agreement as of December 31, 2016. 

During 2017, the Bank had available a $5,000,000 line of credit with First National Bankers Bank. The 
Bank had no borrowings under this agreement as of December 31, 2017. 

The Bank had similar borrowing arrangements for 2016. At December 31, 2016, the Bank had no 
borrowings outstanding. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN 

Effective January 1, 2009, the Bank implemented a freeze on its defined benefit pension plan. 
Employees participating in the plan prior to the effective date will receive the benefits they have 
already accrued, but will not receive benefit for additional time with the bank. New employees will be 
excluded from entering into the plan. 

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2017 are the following amounts 
that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost: unrecognized prior service costs of 
$48,829 ($38,600, net of tax), and unrecognized actuarial losses of $609,839 ($481,800, net of tax). The 
prior service credit and actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected 
to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 is $35,868 
($28,400, net of tax), and $11,563 ($9,100, net of tax), respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Net periodic pension cost included the following components: 

Year Ended December 31, 
2017 2016 2015 

Service cost $ $ $ 
Interest cost 75,736 78,521 67,426 
Expected return on plan assets (97,970) (96,820) (104,151) 
Amortization of transition asset 
Amortization of (gain) loss 12,487 11,622 8,541 
Amortization of prior service cost {35,868) (35,868) (35,868) 

Net periodic pension cost (45,615) (42,545) (64,052) 
ASC 715 Event 45.479 27J96 

Total Net Periodic Pension Cost $ (136) $ (42.545) $ (36,756) 

Weighted-average assumption: 
Discount rate 4.02% 4.23% 3.77% 
Expected return on assets 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A 

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical returns of various 
benchmark indices and the plan's current asset mix. 

The subsidiary bank does not expect to make any contributions to its pension plan in 2018. 

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

2017 2016 
Change in projected benefit obligation: 

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 1,930,614 $ 1,870,026 
Interest cost 75,736 78,521 
Benefits paid (199,411) 
Actuarial (gain) (10,928) (26,697) 
Assumption change 104,845 8,764 
Projected benefit at end of the year 1,900,856 1,930,614 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,446,213 1,396,878 
Actual return on plan assets 195,410 49,335 
Benefits paid (199,411) 
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 1,442,212 l,446J13 

Funded status $ (458.644) $ (484.401) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Weighted-average assumptions at end of year 
Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Mortality Table 

2017 2016 

3.57% 
NIA 

RP-2014 
Proj. Scale 
MP-2017 

4.02% 
NIA 

RP-2014 
Proj. Scale 
MP-2016 

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of: 

2017 2016 

Current assets $ $ 
Noncurrent assets 
Noncurrent liabilities {458!644) (4841401) 

$ ~581644) $ (4841~HH) 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), before tax effect, consists of: 

2017 2016 

Net gain (loss) $ 3,523 $ (29,552) 
Amortization of prior service cost (35,868) (35,868) 
Amortization of gain 12,487 11,622 
ASC 715 Event 451479 

$ 25~2] $ (53,128) 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $1,900,856 and 
$1,930,614 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The subsidiary bank's pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2017 and 2016, are as follows: 

Asset Category 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Debt securities 
Equity securities 
Total 
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Percentage of Plan Assets 
at December 31 1 

2017 2016 

2% 
46% 
52% 

]00% 

4% 
37% 
59% 

]00% 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The subsidiary bank's weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2017 and 2016, were 
approximately: 

Weighted-Average 
Percentage of Plan 

Target Plan Assets at 
Asset Allocation December 311 

Asset Categor1:: Mix Range 2017 2016 
Cash, cash equivalents, fixed 
income (bonds and bond funds) 40% 20-70% 45% 43% 

Equities ( common stock and 
stock funds) 60% 30-80% 55% 57% 

The investment policy, as established by the plan's trustee, is to invest in assets based on the target 
allocations shown above. The assets will be reallocated periodically by the trustee based on the 
allocation ranges set forth in the plan to meet target allocations. The investment policy will be 
reviewed periodically to determine if the policy or the actual asset allocation range should be 
changed. The plan assets will be invested with the primary goal to pursue long-term capital growth, 
with a goal of meeting the long-term needs of the portfolio. The secondary goal is to preserve capital 
and mitigate the year-to-year volatility that could greatly impact the availability of funds for financial 
needs at the Bank's discretion. Assets will be invested in a balanced portfolio composed primarily of 
equities, fixed income, and cash or cash equivalent money market investments. 

To minimize risk through proper diversification, no individual holding may exceed 10% of total 
market value, and no more than 30% of total assets may be invested in any one industry. To the 
extent possible, the fixed income portion of the portfolio will be diversified by issuer and by maturity 
date and the equity portion of the investment portfolio will be adequately diversified by industry, 
investment style, and geographic region. 

The company groups its pension plan assets in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets 
are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are as 
follows: 

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement 
date for identical assets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market 
transactions involving identical assets. 

Level 2- Valuation is based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are 
observable either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset. Valuations are 
obtained from pricing models and discounted cash flows that consider standard input factors such as 
observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, and credit 
spreads. 

Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets. Valuation methodologies vary based upon the 
individual types of assets. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The fair values of the Bank's pension plan assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016, by asset category 
are as follows: 

2017 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for Significant Significant 

Identical Observable Unobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs 

Asset Category Total (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 21,636 $ 21,636 $ $ 

Equity securities: 
Common stock 632,479 632,479 
Mutual funds 113,290 113,290 

Fixed income: 
Mutual funds 283,685 283,685 
Government 

securities 3912122 3912122 
$ tA42.212 $ 1,051.090 $ 391.122 $ 

2016 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for Significant Significant 

Identical Observable Unobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs 

Asset Category Total {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 54,169 $ 54,169 $ $ 

Equity securities: 
Common stock 701,249 701,249 
Mutual funds 156,004 156,004 

Fixed income: 
Mutual funds 285,225 285,225 
Government 

securities 249J66 249J66 
$ 1A46,213 $ 1!196J'i42 $ 249~66 $ 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Estimated future benefit payments, as appropriate, for each of the next five fiscal years, and in the 
aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter, are as follows: 

Year(s) Amount 

2018 $ 80,000 
2019 80,000 
2020 80,000 
2021 80,000 
2022 80,000 
2023-2027 4961000 

Total $ 826J100 

In addition to the defined benefit plan, the Company's subsidiary, The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc., 
also has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan covering substantially all eligible employees. Under the 
provisions of the plan, eligible employees may defer a portion of their compensation, not to exceed the 
dollar limit determined by law. A matching contribution equal to a percentage of the amount the 
employee deferred is determined annually by the employer. Employees must complete six months of 
service before they are eligible to participate. The Company contributed approximately $77,000, 
$77,000, and $72,000 to the plan for the years ended 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. 

NOTE 17. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital 
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's and the Bank's 
financial statements. 

Under the regulatory capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve 
quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory reporting requirements. The capital amounts and classifications under the prompt 
corrective action guidelines are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 
components, risk weightings and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not 
applicable to bank holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and 
the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total capital, tier 1 capital, common equity tier 
1 capital to risk-weighted assets (as defined in the regulations), and leverage capital, which is tier 1 
capital to adjusted average total assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016, the Company and the Bank meet all the capital adequacy requirements to which they are 
subject. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 17. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the 
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To remain 
categorized as well capitalized, an institution will have to maintain minimum total capital, common 
equity tier 1 capital, tier 1 capital, and leverage capital ratios as disclosed in the following table. 
There are no conditions or events since the most recent notification that management believes have 
changed the institution's prompt corrective action category. 

The following table outlines the regulatory components of the Company's and the Bank's capital and 
capital ratios as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Minimum To Be 
Well Capitalized 

For Capital Under Prompt 
Adequacy Corrective Action 

Actual Pur~oses Provisions 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 
As of December 31 1 2017: 
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 

Consolidated $ 21,750,000 17.7% $ 9,829,000 8.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 21,734,000 17.7% $ 9,829,000 8.0% $12,286,000 10.0% 

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,557,000 16.7% $ 7,372,000 6.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,541,000 16.7% $ 7,372,000 6.0% $ 9,829,000 8.0% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,557,000 16.7% $ 5,529,000 4.5% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,541,000 16.7% $ 5,529,000 4.5% $ 7,986,000 6.5% 

Leverage Capital to Adjusted Average Total Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,557,000 10.1% $ 8,137,000 4.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,541,000 10.1% $ 8,137,000 4.0% $10,171,000 5.0% 

As of December 31. 2016: 
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 

Consolidated $ 21,155,000 17.4% $ 9,708,000 8.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 21,136,000 17.4% $ 9,708,000 8.0% $12,134,000 10.0% 

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,072,000 16.5% $ 7,281,000 6.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,052,000 16.5% $ 7,281,000 6.0% $ 9,708,000 8.0% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,072,000 16.5% $ 5,461,000 4.5% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,052,000 16.5% $ 5,461,000 4.5% $ 7,887,000 6.5% 

Leverage Capital to Adjusted Average Total Assets: 
Consolidated $ 20,072,000 10.5% $ 7,652,000 4.0% N/A N/A 
Subsidiary bank $ 20,052,000 10.5% $ 7,652,000 4.0% $ 9,565,000 5.0% 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY 

The investment of the Company (Citizens Bancshares, Inc.) in its wholly-owned subsidiary, The 
Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc., is presented on the equity method of accounting. The Company's 
balance sheets at December 31, 2017 and 2016, as well as the related statements of income and cash 
flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 are as follows: 

BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 2017 and 2016 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 16,133 
Investment in The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. 19,866,371 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 19.882.504 

LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

$ 

19,882,504 

$ 19.882504 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

$ 19,944 
19,493,021 

$ 19,512.965 

$ 

19,512,965 

$ 19.512.965 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

INCOME 
Dividend from bank subsidiary $ 1,683,000 $ 1,683,000 $ 1,683,000 

EXPENSES 
Operating expenses 

Income Before 
Equity in Undistributed Net 
Income of Subsidiary 

Equity in Undistributed Net 
Income of Subsidiary 

NET INCOME 

(48,811) (54,070) (53,193) 

1,634,189 1,628,930 1,629,807 

374,877 150,803 71,733 

$ 2.009.066 $ 1.779.733 $ 1.701.540 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY (CONTINUED) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

NOTE 19. 

Years Ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 

2017 2016 2015 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Net income $ 2,009,066 $ 1,779,733 $ 1,701,540 
Adjustment to reconcile net 

income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Equity in undistributed net 
income of Subsidiary (374,877) {150,803) (71.733) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,634,189 1,628,930 1,629,807 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 
Dividends paid (1,6381000) !l,6381000) (1,638,000) 

NET CASH (USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,638.000) (1,638,000) (1,638,000) 

Net (Decrease) in Cash (3,811) (9 070) (8,193) 

Cash at Beginning of Year 19.944 29,014 37.207 

Cash at End of Year $ 16.133 $ 19.944 $ 29,014 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company adopted ASU 2018-02-Reclassification of Certain 
Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. Prior to the issuance of ASU 2018-02, 
generally accepted accounting principles required def erred tax liabilities and assets to be adjusted for 
the effect of a change in tax laws or rates with the effect included in income from continuing operations 
in the reporting period that includes the enactment date, including situations in which the related 
income tax effect of items in accumulated other comprehensive income were originally recognized in 
other comprehensive income, rather than in net income. 

The amendments in ASU 2018-02 allow reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income 
to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the newly enacted federal corporate income 
tax rate. The amount of the reclassification is equal to the difference between the historical statutory 
federal corporate income tax rate of 34% and the newly enacted 21 % statutory federal corporate 
income tax rate. Consequently, the adoption of ASU 2018-02 eliminates the stranded tax effects 
associated with the change in the federal corporate income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 
and improves the usefulness of the information reported in these financial statements. The adoption of 
ASU 2018-02 was applied retrospectively by the Company. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 19. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (CONTINUED) 

The effect of the change in accounting principle is as follows: 

Prior to 
Adoption of 

ASU 2018-02 

December 31. 2017 
After 

Adoption of 
ASU 2018-02 

Effect of 
Change 

Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
(loss) $ (560,639) $ (674,839) $ (114,200) 

Retained earnings 17,443,143 17,557,343 114,200 

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March S, 2018, the date these consolidated 
financial statements were issued. No material subsequent events have occurred since December 31, 
2017, requiring recognition or disclosure. 
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To the Stockholders: 

CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Weston, West Virginia 

NOTICE OF REGULAR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 

To be held April 21, 2018 

The Regular Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., will be held in the lobby 
of The Citizens Bank of Weston at 201 Main Avenue, Weston, West Virginia, at 2:00 p.m. on 
April 21, 2018, for the purpose of considering and voting upon the following: 

1 . The election of a Board of six Directors of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

2. Any other business which may properly be brought before the meeting or any adjournment thereof. 

Only those stockholders of record at the close of business on March· 22, 2018, shall be entitled to notice of 
the meeting and to vote at the meeting. 

A stockholders' reception will follow the formal business meeting. You are cordially invited to attend the 
meeting. Whether or not you expect to attend the meeting, please date, sign and return promptly the enclosed 
proxy in order to ensure that your shares are voted. A return envelope is enclosed for your convenience. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 
Secretary 

PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THE PROXY CARD IN THE APPROPRIATE ENVELOPE AS PROMPTLY AS 
POSSIBLE, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON. IF YOU DO ATTEND 
THE MEETING, YOU MAY THEN WITHDRAW YOUR PROXY. 

March 23, 2018 



CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Weston, West Virginia 

PROXY STATEMENT 
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS-APRIL 21, 2018 

This statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies for use at the Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. to be held on April 21, 2018, at the time and for the purposes set forth 
In the foregoing Notice of Regular Annual Meeting of Stockholders. 

Solicitation of Proxies 

The solicitation of proxies is made by management at the direction of the Board of Directors of Citizens 
Bancshares, Inc. These proxies enable stockholders to vote on all matters which are scheduled to come before 
the meeting. If the enclosed proxy is signed and returned, it will be voted as directed; or if not directed, the proxy 
will be voted "FOR" the election of the management nominees as Directors. A stockholder executing the proxy 
may revoke it at any time before it is voted by notifying Citizens Bancshares, Inc., in person, by giving written 
notice to Citizens Bancshares, Inc., of the revocation of the proxy, by submitting to Citizens Bancshares, Inc. a 
subsequently dated proxy, or by attending the meeting and withdrawing the proxy before it is voted at the meeting. 

The expense for the solicitation of proxies will be paid by Citizens Bancshares, Inc. In addition to this solicita­
tion by mail, officers and regular employees of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., may, to a limited extent, solicit proxies 
personally or by telephone or telegraph, although no person will be engaged specifically for that purpose. 

Ellglbillty of Stock for Voting Purposes 

Pursuant to the Bylaws of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., the Board of Directors has fixed March 22, 2018, 
as the record date for the purpose of determining the stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting 
or any adjournment thereof, and only stockholders of record at the close of business on that date are entitled to 
such notice and to vote at such meeting or any adjournment thereof. As of the record date there were 8,000,000 
shares authorized to be issued, of which 1,400,000 shares were issued and outstanding. 

PURPOSE OF MEETING 

1. Election of Directors 

The Bylaws of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., provide that the Board of Directors shall consist of not fewer than 
five nor more than 35 stockholders, the exact number of Directors within such minimum and maximum limits to be 
fixed and determined from time to time by resolution of a majority of the full Board or by resolution of stockhold­
ers at any annual or special meeting thereof. There are at present six (6) Directors on the Board, all of whom are 
nominees for election at the 2018 Annual Meeting. 

The persons named below, all of whom are currently members of the Board of Directors, will be nominated 
for election to serve as Directors of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., until the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, or 
until their successors are elected and qualified. Of the six Directors, five are nonemployee directors who have 
broad executive experience in a wide variety of businesses including law, education, and natural resources. 

The Bylaws of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., provide that in the election of Directors of Citizens Bancshares, 
Inc., each stockholder shall have the right to vote the number of shares owned by that stockholder for as many 
persons as there are Directors to be elected, or to cumulate such shares and give one candidate as many votes 
as the number of Directors multiplied by the number of his shares owned shall equal, or to distribute them on the 
same principle among as many candidates as the stockholder shall think fit. For all other purposes, each share 
is entitled to one vote. Unless otherwise directed, it is intended that the enclosed proxy will be voted "FOR" the 
election of the six management nominees to the Board; but, if any shares are voted cumulatively for the election 
of Directors, the Proxies, unless otherwise directed, shall have full discretion and authority to cumulate their votes 
and vote for less than all such nominees. 
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The table set forth on page 2 of this Proxy Statement contains background information on each director 
nominee. 

Committees of the Board 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc., commenced business on September 20, 1985, as a bank holding company. There 

are no paid employees of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., to date, and the financial operations of Citizens Bancshares, 
Inc., in 2017 related mainly to its ownership of the stock of the Bank. At this time, no committees separate from 
the Board have been created. 

The function of a Nominating Committee for Citizens Bancshares, Inc., and for the Bank is performed by 
their respective Boards of Directors. 

The Board of Directors of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., met thirteen times in 2017. One member missed two 
meetings. The other members attended every meeting. 

Management Nominees for the Board of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
The management nominees for the Board of Directors are: 

Nominees Age Served Aa A Director Famlly Relatlonehlp Principal Occupation Or 
Of Holding Company Since With Other Dlrectora Employment Laat 5 Yeara 

Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 81 July 27, 1995 Cousin W. T. Weber, Jr. Retired Employee 
Weston, West Virginia & W. T. Weber, Ill Benefit Manager 
W. T. Weber, Jr. 81 March 1 , 1985 Cousin Gene Edwards Attorney Weston, West Virginia & Father of W. T. Weber, Ill 
W. T. Weber, Ill 50 January 24, 2008 Son W. T. Weber, Jr. Attorney Weston, West Virginia 
A. Dennis Xander 64 April 23, 2015 None President 
Buckhannon, West Virginia Denex Petroleum 
James L. Sherrell 62 November 20, 2014 None Retired Oil & Gas 
Weston, West Virginia Executive 
Charles C. Stalnaker President & CEO 
Weston, West Virginia 70 April 16, 2016 None Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. 

Principal Holders of Voting Securities 
The following table sets forth the names and addresses of those stockholders who own beneficially more than 

5 percent (5%) of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., Common Stock as of February 22, 2018, the amount and nature of the 
beneficial ownership, and the percentage of the outstanding voting securities represented by the amount owned. 

TltleofCI ... Name and AcldreN Amount and Nature %of 
of Beneficial Owner of Beneflclel Ownerahlp c, ... 

Common Stock Security National Trust Company 702,800 (1) 50.2 
Trustee Under The Will Of 
T. A. Whelan, Deceased 

Wheeling, WV 26003 

(1) The only person or enHtv of the present three hundred seventy-one (371) stockholders ot Citizens Bancshares, Inc., lo own direcily; and beneficially, more than five percent of the 
outstanding shares of Citizens Bancshares, Inc .. Is Security National Trust Company as successor Trustee ot JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as successor Trustee ol Bank 
One, Wheeling-Steubenville, N.A.. as successor Trustee ol The Charleston Natlonal Bank, as Trustee under the La61 Will and Teslament ot T. A. Whelan, deceased, which 
owns 702,800 shares, or 50.2%. The 702,800 shares owned by Security National Trust Company, es Trustee, are currently voted as a block by Gerta H. Edwards, Jr., W.T. 
Weber. Jr. and W. T. Weber Ill as members ol the Adviso,y Committee hereinafter discussed. W.T. Weber, Jr.,ls Chairman ol lhe Board ot Bank and ot Citizens Bancshares, . 
Inc .• Gene H. Edwards, Jr., and W. T. Weber Ill ere directors ol both Bank end CHlzens Bancshares, Inc. 

T. A. Whelan died testate In Lewis County, West Virginia on April 27, 1966. At the time of his death, T. A. Whelan was the owner ot a majority or the shares ot the capHal stoek 
of Bank. He bequealhed lhe sloek to The Charleston Nations.I Bank. es Trustee. to be held In trusl end managed with the assistance of the Advisory Committee tor Iha benelll 
ol n!ne (9) named benel1ciaries, who were his nieces and nephews. 

The trust wlll 1erm1nate twenty-one (21) years alter the death of the last named beneliclary. (The last named beneficiary died Ociober 27, 2007). Al that time all assets In the 
trusi will be distributed to the Issue ol the named benellciaries, per sllrpes. At Iha termination of the trust, the Truslee may determine whether to distribute the assets In kind 
or to sell the assets and distribute cash. The Trustee must consul! the Advisory Commlltee ln lhis decision but In the event of a disagreement, I.ha decision of the Trustee shall 
be conclusive. 

The Advisory Comminee shall alwa,ys consist ot three persons, and the Trustee must name the members ol the Adviso,y Committee as its proxy to vote the stock at all 
stockholder meetings. Should a vacancy occur on the Advisory Commlllee, lhe two remaining Advisory Committee members shall appoint a third. Should there remain only 
one member, thal member may select one replacement to lhe Advisory Committee and the two may select a third. Should lhe remaining member or members of the Advisory 
Commlnee fall to select a successor or SUCQ8Ssors within lh!rty (30) days or vacancy, the Trustee shall select a successor or successors. II the Trustee lalls to do so within 
ten (10) days following the explratlon of the thirty (30) day period, then the Trustee. any remaining Advisory Committee lflBmber. or any banellcfary under the lrust may apply 
to the Judge or the Circuit Coun of Lewis County to 1111 the vacancy. 
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Ownership of Securities by Directors and Officers 

The following tabulation sets forth the number of shares of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., Common Stock benefi­
cially owned, by (i) each of the management nominees and (ii) the Directors and Officers of Citizens Bancshares, 
Inc., as a group as of February 22, 2018 and indicates the percentages of Common Stock so owned. 

Name Shares Beneflci1lly Owned (1) % of SharnOutatandlng 

Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 24,000 direct 600 indirect 1.76 

W. T. Weber, Jr. 9,730 direct 27,400 indirect 2.65 

W. T. Weber, Ill 870 direct 400 indirect 0.09 

A. Dennis Xander 275 direct 0.00 

James .L. Sherrell 130 direct 100 indirect 0.00 

Charles C. Stalnaker 200 direct 0.00 

All Directors and Officers As a Group (6) 35,205 direct 28,500 indirect 4.6 

(1) Sharel held Indirectly Include shares held by spouse, minor chlldren, and relative& sharing the same residence. 

Other Information 

If any of the nominees for election as Directors should be unable to serve as Directors by reason of death or 
other unexpected occurrence, a proxy will be voted for a substitute nominee or nominees designated by manage­
ment of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

The management is unaware of any other matters to be considered at the meeting, but, if any other mat­
ters properly come before the meeting, persons named in the proxy will vote such proxy in accordance with their 
judgment on such matter. 

Stockholder Proposals for· 2019 

Any stockholder who wishes to have a proposal placed before the next annual Meeting of Stockholders 
must submit the proposal to the Secretary of Citizens Bancshares, Inc., at its executive offices, no later than 
November 30, 2018, to have it considered for inclusion in the Proxy Stat~ment of the Annual Meeting in 2019. 

Enclosures 
Weston, West Virginia 
Maret, 23, 2018 
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Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 
Secretary 




